



# **EPADYM SINGLE MEMBER SOCIETE ANONYME**

Annual Financial Statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2020

> EDADYM SINGLE MEMBER SOCIETE ANONYME 25 ERMOU STR., 145 64 Tax ID No.: 800626914 TAX OFFICE: ATHENS TAX OFFICE FOR COMMERCIAL COMPANIES General Electronic Commercial Registry No. 132837401000



# Contents

| BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MANAGEMENT REPORT OF "EDADYM SINGLE ME<br>SOCIETE ANONYME " |    |
|---|----|
| Statement of Financial Position   | 15 |
| Income Statement  | 16 |
| Statement of Comprehensive Income   |    |
| Statement of Changes in Equity  |    |
|   |    |
| Cash flow statement   |    |
| Notes to the financial statements   |    |
| 1 General information   |    |
| 2 Summary of significant accounting policies                                    |    |
| 2.1 Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements                            |    |
| 2.2 New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations                  |    |
| 2.4 Leases  |    |
| 2.5 Tangible Assets   | 25 |
| 2.5 Financial Instruments   | 25 |
| 2.6 Trade and other receivables   | 28 |
| 2.7 Cash and cash equivalents   | 28 |
| 2.8 Share Capital   | 28 |
| 2.9 Suppliers and other liabilities   |    |
| 2.10 Loans  | 28 |
| 2.11 Current and deferred taxation  | 29 |
| 2.12 Provisions   | 29 |
| 2.13 Employee benefits  | 29 |
| 2.14 Distribution of dividends  |    |
| 2.15 Recognition of income  |    |
| 2.18 Rounding of accounts   | 31 |
| 3 Financial risk management   | 31 |
| 3.1 Financial risk factors  | 31 |
| 3.2 Cash management   |    |
| 4 Significant accounting estimates of the management                            |    |
| 5. Property, plant and equipment  |    |
| 6. Trade and other receivables  | 34 |
| 7. Cash and cash equivalents  | 35 |
| 8. Share capital  | 35 |
| 9. Other reserves   | 35 |
| 10. Suppliers and other liabilities   |    |
| 11. Deferred taxation   |    |
| 12. Provisions for staff compensation   |    |
| 13 Borrowings   |    |
| 14. Expenses per category   |    |
|   |    |



| 15. | Finance income/ (expenses) - net     | 40 |
|-----|--------------------------------------|----|
| 16. | Other profit/(loss)                  | 40 |
| 17. | Income tax                           | 41 |
| 18. | Operating cash flows                 | 42 |
| 19. | Contingent liabilities               | 42 |
| 20. | Company transactions with affiliates | 42 |
| 21. | Other notes                          |    |
| 22. | Subsequent events                    | 43 |





# BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MANAGEMENT REPORT OF "EDADYM SINGLE MEMBER SOCIETE ANONYME "

### TO THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

#### **OVERVIEW**

The Company operates in Greece, in the refuse management sector for the development and management of waste management projects including Refuse Treatment Plants (RTP), Wastewater Treatment Plants (WTP) and Sanitary Landfills (SL), and has been appointed as Officer of the project "Design, Financing, Construction, Maintenance and Infrastructure Operation for the Integrated Waste Management System (IWMS) in the Region of Western Macedonia through a PPP, which includes the construction of New Infrastructures and the operation of New and certain Existing Infrastructures and concerns the total of the Solid Urban Waste of the Region of Western Macedonia, that is, capacity of 120 thousand tons/year.

#### **EVENTS OF THE YEAR 2020**

During the 4th contractual year (01.01.2020 - 31.12.2020), the Company received 87,117.76 tonnes of urban mixed waste from Western Macedonia which it processed to produce 13,582.01 tons of recyclable materials, and the Company also received 16,941.64 tons of urban mixed non-conventional waste from the Municipality of Egialia and from the 3 Municipalities of the Regional Unit of Corfu of which it processed 20,213.22 tons to produce 2,791.79 tons of recyclable materials. Incoming waste was higher than that forecast in the revised financial model due to the receipt

of significant amounts of non-conventional waste. 7,740.34 tonnes of recyclable materials were sold from the plant's products, while 18,457.19 tonnes of Type A compost were allocated to the uses authorized by the Decision on the Approval of Environmental Conditions (DAEC).

The 4th contractual year of operation was successfully completed, as all three contractual objectives were met both for Conventional Waste from Western Macedonia:

- Recyclables recovery target: 41.80% > 35%
- Residue percentage target: 34.52% < 35.96%
- Target of biodegradable waste (BDW) diversion to landfill: 88.09% > 80%

and for Non-conventional Waste from Western Macedonia:

- Recyclables recovery target: 39.80% > 35%
- Residue percentage target: 35.73% < 35.96%
- Target of biodegradable waste (BDW) diversion to landfill: 86.78 > 80%



During the forth contractual year of operation, costs continued to be slightly high due to the continuation of modifications to the unit to improve functionality and effectiveness, combined with receiving additional quantities from areas outside Western Macedonia, to ensure high availability and efficiency.

In the forth contract year, payments from EPADYM were delayed, and there is a delay in EPADYM receiving its payments from DIADYMA because of the new PPJV process and disbursement from the PIP. Such delays were covered by working capital loans to meet the Company's operating needs

In more detail, the financial figures are shown below:

- The Company's revenue amounted to EUR 7,262 thousand (2019: EUR 6,746 thousand).
- Profits before taxes amounted to Euro 481 thousand (2019 losses: EUR 135 thousand).
- The company's equity increased to EUR 1,121 thousand (31.12.2020) from EUR 793 thousand (31.12.2019).
- Cash flows from operating activities for 2020 were positive, amounting to EUR 983 thousand (2019: EUR 804 thousand).
- Cash flows from investing and financing activities for 2020 were: negative EUR 16 thousand and positive EUR 350 thousand respectively. (2019: negative EUR 2 thousand and positive EUR 278 thousand respectively).
- The number of staff employed by the Company as at 31.12.2020 was 149 persons and as at 31.12.2019 was 119 persons.

#### **FUTURE ACTIONS**

For the year 2021, some construction improvements are expected to be completed, whose budget will be significantly lower than in 2020.

In 2020, efforts will continue to rationalize staff costs in order to reduce costs and improve the company's financial results.

As part of the environmental monitoring of the project, small-scale interventions continue to improve the environmental footprint of the plant's operation and to ensure environmental protection in the event of extreme weather phenomena in the area.

In addition, the two small portable composting boxes were fully operational in 2020 and the construction of a special bio-waste reception and processing area was completed and, in conjunction with the operation of the two small boxes, this marked the beginning of receiving and managing bio-waste while the contractibility of their management is expected.

A market survey was carried out on the electricity supply through which the gate fee was retroactively adjusted for 2021 incorporating the adjustment of electricity supply costs in relation to the base scenario, from which EDADYM will wholly benefit itself. However, with the completion of the market research the cost of electricity supply increased further and sharply and we must expect a certain market stabilisation in order to investigate to which extent the cost of service provision of EDADYM will be affected

In relation to the management of non-conventional waste, the cooperation with the 3 Municipalities of Corfu Regional Unit continues so that they become processed in Western Macedonia. If this is the case, it is estimated that in 2021, the Western Macedonia waste treatment plant will approach its maximum processing capacity (120,000 tons of solid urban waste per year)

#### FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT



#### **Financial risk factors**

The Company is exposed to various financial risks, such as market risks, liquidity risk, and interest rate risk.

Risk management is monitored by the finance division of the parent Company ELLAKTOR SA, and more specifically, by the Central Financial Management Division, and is determined by instructions, directions and rules approved by the Board of Directors. The finance division determines and estimates the financial risks in collaboration with the services managing those risks. The Board of Directors provides directions on general risk management as well as specialized directions on the management of specific risks such as interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments, as well as investment of cash.

#### (a) Credit risk

The Company has an increased concentration of credit risk since all its revenues come from the provision of services to EPADYM.

Cash and cash equivalents also involve potential credit risk. In such cases, the risk may arise from counterparty failure to fulfill their obligations towards the Company. In order to minimize this credit risk, the Company sets limits to the degree of exposure for each financial institution, within the scope of the policies of the Board f Directors.

#### (b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the company's ability to settle its financial obligations when they become due. Given the current crisis of the Greek State and the Greek financial sector, the liquidity risk is higher and the management of cash flows is urgent. To manage liquidity risk, the Company budgets and monitors its cash flows and acts accordingly so as to have adequate cash available and bank credit lines in place. The Company has sufficient cash as well as significant credit lines in place to cover cash needs that may arise.

#### (c) Interest rate risk

All Company loans are usually taken at a floating interest rate and are expressed in euro. Therefore, the interest rate risk is connected to fluctuations of euro rates. With regard to long-term loans, the Company's Management monitors rate fluctuations systematically and on an ongoing basis and evaluates the need to assume hedging positions, if such risks are considered to be significant.

The company constantly monitors interest rate trends, as well as the duration and nature of its financing needs. Decisions on the term of loans as well as the relation between floating and fixed interest rates are considered by the management on a case by case basis.

#### **Cash management**

Regarding cash management, the Company's intention is to ensure its ability to continue its operations unhindered so as to secure returns for shareholders and benefits for other parties associated with the Company, and to maintain an optimum capital structure so as to achieve capital cost reductions.

In order to preserve or change its capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets.

#### **Financial ratios**

The Company has calculated financial ratios to add additional information to existing ones, as listed in the table below, with key financial performance and profitability ratios, financial structure and overall liquidity:

31-Dec-20 31-Dec-19



# Performance and efficiency

| Net operating results    | 638,595   | 8.79%   | 22.309    | 0.33%   |
|--------------------------|-----------|---------|-----------|---------|
| Sales                    | 7,262,059 |         | 6,746,713 |         |
|                          |           |         |           |         |
|                          |           |         |           |         |
| Net results before taxes | 480,946   | 42.90%  | 134,974   | -17.02% |
| Equity                   | 1,121,175 |         | 793,062   |         |
|                          |           |         |           |         |
| Gross results            | 934,751   | 12.87%  | 542,433   | 8.04%   |
| Sales                    | 7,262,059 |         | 6,746,713 |         |
|                          |           |         |           |         |
|                          |           |         |           |         |
| Capital Structure        |           |         |           |         |
| Current assets           | 3,521,672 | 66.36%  | 3,743,171 | 63.97%  |
| Total assets             | 5,307,265 |         | 5,851,548 |         |
|                          |           |         |           |         |
| Equity                   | 1,121,174 | 26.79%  | 793,062   | 15.68%  |
| Total liabilities        | 4,185,490 |         | 5,058,486 |         |
|                          |           |         |           |         |
| General liquidity        |           |         |           |         |
| Current assets           | 3,521,672 | 128.80% | 3,743,171 | 112.63% |
| Short-term liabilities   | 2,734,321 |         | 3,323,418 |         |
|                          |           |         |           |         |

## **ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES**

The Company pays special attention to protecting and respecting both the natural environment and the working conditions of the personnel, as well as minimizing the negative impact of its activities. As a result, it has aimed to undertake new initiatives in order to promote greater environmental responsibility, as well as the development of technologies that are environmentally friendly. The Company has adopted accredited environmental management systems, thus ensuring legislative compliance and effective environmental control of its projects and activities. In view of the above, the Company has been certified according to ISO 14001. Moreover, EDADYM SINGLE MEMBER SOCIETE ANONYME has obtained the ISO 9001 certification on quality management and improvement of internal organization and operation and the ISO 18001 certification on project hygiene and safety.

Since the start of the project, the environmental monitoring program has been strictly applied, according to which the environmental parameters of both the working environment and the environment of the RTP and the Waste Transfer Stations are systematically measured, and an analysis of the incoming waste and outgoing products is carried out to confirm the correct functioning of the plants and that the environmental burden of the company's activity is zero.

The environmental monitoring program includes, among others, the periodic measurement of parameters such as the noise emitted inside and outside buildings, the presence of insects, pests, etc., dust and air emissions, the characteristics of incoming and outgoing waste water, good operation of biofilters, vehicle movement, quality of groundwater and surface water, as well as leachates from the landfill and dehydrated sludge, soil quality, monitoring of subsidence in the landfill and biogas leaks, the dynamic rate of transpiration of residues and compost, analysis of the composition of compost, as well as viable weed and salmonella seeds. It is emphasized that, since the project came into operation, all recorded measurements have been within permissible limits.



## **RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES**

The Company has not undertaken any research or development during the fiscal year 01.01. – 31.12.2020.

#### **FUTURE EVENTS**

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 120 of Law 4799/2021 (Government Gazette Series I, 78/18.05.2021) the tax rate of profits from business activity acquired by legal persons and legal entities, is reduced by two percentage points (from a former 24% to 22%), for the revenues of the tax year 2021 and future years. Were the change in the tax rate from 24% to 22% applied to the current financial year this would not significantly affect the financial report of the Company.

Athens, 23 June 2021

For the Board of Directors

The Vice Chairman & delegated director of the Board of Directors

Nikos A. Perdikaris



PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS Auditing Company SA, T: +30 210 6874400, www.pwc.gr



#### INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED AUDITOR-ACCOUNTANT REPORT

To the Shareholder of EDADYM SA Company

#### Audit Report on the Financial Statements

#### Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of EDADYM SA (Company), which consist of the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the income statements, total income statements, changes in equity and in cash flows for the year ended on that date, as well as the notes on the financial statements also including a summary of significant accounting policies. In our opinion, the attached financial statements reasonably present, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at 31 December 2020, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended on that date, in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and which comply with the regulatory requirements of Law 4548/2018.

#### **Basis of opinion**

We carried out our audit in accordance with the International Audit Standards (IAS), as transposed into the Greek legislation. Our responsibilities, according to these standards, are further described in the section of our report "Auditor's responsibilities in auditing the financial statements". We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

#### Auditor's independence

Throughout our appointment we remain independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Conduct for Professional Auditors of the Board of International Standards of Auditors' Ethics incorporated into Greek law, and ethics requirements of Law 4449/2017, relating to the audit of financial statements in Greece. We have fulfilled our ethical obligations according to Law 4449/2017 and the requirements of the Code of Conduct for Professional Auditors of the Board of International Standards of Auditors' Ethics.

#### Other information

The members of the Board of Directors are responsible for Other information. Other Information is the Management Report of the Board of Directors (but does not include the financial statements and the audit report thereon) that we received before the date of this auditor's report.Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover Other information and, apart from what is expressly stated in this paragraph of our Report, we do not express an audit opinion or other assurance on it. With regard to our audit of the financial statements, it is our responsibility to read Other information and thus to consider whether Other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or the knowledge we acquired during our audit or otherwise appear to be fundamentally incorrect.

We have examined whether the Management Report of the Board of Directors includes the disclosures required by Codified Law 4548/2018. Based on the work we performed during our audit, in our opinion:



- the information included in the Management Report of the Board of Directors for the year ended 31/12/2020 corresponds to the financial statements;
- The Annual Management Report of the Board of Directors has been drawn up according to the current legal requirements of Article 150 of Law 4548/2018.

Moreover, on the basis of the information and understanding we obtained during our audit in relation to the Company EDADYM SA and the environment it operates in, we are obliged to report that we did not identify any material misstatements in the Directors' Report. We have nothing to report about this issue.

#### Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and those responsible for governance on financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, as these have been adopted by the European Union, the requirements of Law 4548/2018, and for such audit safeguards that the Board of Directors finds necessary in order to make possible the preparation of the financial statements free of any material misstatements, due either to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue its activities, disclosing, where applicable, any issues related to the going concern and the use of the accounting basis of the going concern unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to discontinue its activities or has no other realistic option than to take such actions. Those responsible for governance have the responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process of the Company.

#### Auditor's responsibilities in auditing the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report presenting our opinion. The reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that the audit carried out in accordance with the IAS, incorporated into the Greek Legislation, will always identify a material misstatement, when such a misstatement exists. Misstatements may result from fraud or error and are considered material when individually or collectively could reasonably be expected to affect the financial decisions of users made on the basis of these financial statements. As an auditing duty, according to the IAS incorporated into the Greek Legislation, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Furthermore:

- We identify and assess the risks of material misstatements in the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, by designing and performing audit procedures that respond to those risks and we obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of failing to identify a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than that due to error, since fraud may involve collusion, forgery, deliberate omissions, false assertions or the bypassing of internal audit safeguards.
- We obtain an understanding of internal audit safeguards relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures appropriate to the circumstances, but not with a view to expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal audit safeguards.



- We assess the appropriateness of the accounting policies and methods used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
- We decide on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the accounting principle on a going concern basis and based on the audit evidence that has been obtained as to whether there is material uncertainty about events or circumstances that may indicate material uncertainty as to the ability of the Company to continue its activity. If we conclude that there is material uncertainty, we are required to report such disclosures in the financial statements in the auditor's report or whether these disclosures are insufficient to differentiate our opinion. Our findings are based on audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may result in the Company ceasing to operate as a going concern.
- We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including disclosures, and whether the financial statements reflect the underlying transactions and events in a manner ensuring their reasonable presentation.

Among other issues, we report to those responsible for governance, the scope and timing of the audit, as well as important audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in the internal audit that we identify during our audit.



Annual Financial Statements in line with the International Financial Reporting Standards for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2020 *Ill amounts are expressed in Euros, unless stated otherwise)* 

# **Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Issues**

The work we performed on the Board of Directors' Management Report is mentioned in section "Other information" above.

Athens, 30 June 2021

The Certified Auditor -Accountant



PriceWaterhouseCoopers

Auditing Company SA

Certified Auditors & Accountants

SOEL Reg. No 113

Despina Marinou

SOEL Reg. No 17681



# **Statement of Financial Position**

| ASSETS                              |    | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|-------------------------------------|----|-----------|-----------|
| Non-current assets                  |    |           |           |
| Property, plant and equipment       | 5  | 1,766,043 | 2,089,567 |
| Deferred tax receivables            | 11 | 19,550    | 18,810    |
|                                     |    | 1,785,593 | 2,108,377 |
| Current assets                      |    |           |           |
| Trade and other receivables         | 6  | 1,475,381 | 2,313,982 |
| Cash and cash equivalents           | 7  | 2,046,291 | 1,429,188 |
|                                     |    | 3,521,672 | 3,743,171 |
| Total assets                        |    | 5,307,265 | 5,851,548 |
| EQUITY                              |    |           |           |
| Equity attributable to shareholders |    |           |           |
| Share capital                       | 8  | 1,274,000 | 1,274,000 |
| Other reserves                      | 9  | (26,114)  | (20.567)  |
| Losses carried forward              |    | (126,111) | (460,371) |
| Total equity                        |    | 1,121,175 | 793,062   |
| LIABILITIES                         |    |           |           |
| Non-current liabilities             |    |           |           |
| Long term loans                     | 13 | 1,358,264 | 1,657,033 |
| Provisions for staff indemnities    | 12 | 92,905    | 78,036    |
|                                     |    | 1,451,169 | 1,735,068 |
| Short-term liabilities              |    |           |           |
| Suppliers and other liabilities     | 10 | 1,176,453 | 1.920.347 |
| Current tax liabilities             |    | 143,354   | 0         |
| Short-term loans                    | 13 | 1,414,513 | 1,403,071 |
|                                     |    | 2,734,321 | 3,323,418 |
| Total liabilities                   |    | 4,185,490 | 5,058,486 |
| Total equity and liabilities        |    | 5,307,265 | 5,851,548 |



# **Income Statement**

|   |    | 31-Dec-20   | 31-Dec-19   |
|---|----|-------------|-------------|
| Sales                                   |    | 7,262,059   | 6,746,713   |
| Cost of goods sold                      | 14 | (6,327,308) | (6,204,280) |
| Gross profit                            |    | 934,751     | 542,433     |
| Administrative expenses                 | 14 | (283,438)   | (485,713)   |
| Other income                            |    | 600         | 0           |
| Other profit/(loss)                     | 16 | (13,318)    | (34,411)    |
| Operating results                       |    | 638,595     | 22.309      |
| Financial income                        | 15 | 3,459       | 3,195       |
| Financial expenses                      | 15 | (161,109)   | (160,478)   |
| Net profit/(loss) before tax            |    | 480,946     | 134,974     |
| Income tax                              | 17 | (146,686)   | 17,976      |
| Net profit / (loss) for the fiscal year |    | 334,259     | (116,998)   |



# Statement of Comprehensive Income

|                                      |    | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|--------------------------------------|----|-----------|-----------|
| Results (losses/profits) after taxes |    | 334,259   | (116,998) |
| Actuarial loss                       | 12 | (5,546)   | (12,559)  |
|                                      |    | 328,713   | (129,557) |



# **Statement of Changes in Equity**

|  | _    | Share<br>capital      | Other reserves         | Results<br>carried<br>forward | Total              |
|--|------|-----------------------|------------------------|-------------------------------|--------------------|
| <b>1-Jan-19</b>                                  |      | <b>1,274,000</b>      | <b>(8,008)</b>         | <b>(343,372)</b>              | 922,620            |
| Net profits for the period                       |      | 0                     | 0                      | (116,998)                     | (116,998)          |
| Actuarial loss                                   | 12 _ | 0                     | (12,559)               | 0                             | (12,559)           |
| <b>31-Dec-19</b>                                 |      | 1,274,000             | (20.567)               | (460,370)                     | 793,063            |
| <b>1-Jan-20</b><br>Net profits for the<br>period | -    | <b>1,274,000</b><br>0 | ( <b>20.567</b> )<br>0 | ( <b>460,370</b> )<br>334,259 | 793,063<br>334,259 |
| Actuarial loss                                   | 12   | 0                     | (5,546)                | 0                             | (5,546)            |
| <b>31-Dec-20</b>                                 |      | 1,274,000             | (26,114)               | (132,258)                     | 1,121,775          |



# Cash flow statement

|  | 1-Jan to<br>Dec-2 |      | 1-Jan to 31-<br>Dec-19 |
|--|-------------------|------|------------------------|
| Cash flows from operating activities               |                   |      |                        |
| Cash flows from operating activities               | 1,081             | ,105 | (655.675)              |
| Less:  |                   |      |                        |
| Debit interest and related expenses paid           | (98,4             | 402) | (113,331)              |
| Taxes paid   |                   | 0    | (35,384)               |
| Total inflows/(outflows) from operating activities | 982               | ,704 | (804,390)              |
| Cash flows from investing activities               |                   |      |                        |
| Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets      | 5 (19,            | 027) | (12,877)               |
| Interest received                                  | 3                 | ,459 | 3,195                  |
| Sale of tangible assets                            |                   | 0    | 7,403                  |
| Net cash flows from investing activities           | (15,              | 568) | (2,279)                |
| Cash flows from financing activities               |                   |      |                        |
| Repayment of loans 1                               | 3 (62,            | 366) | (1,638,433)            |
| Financial Lease capital repayment 1                | 3 (287,           | 667) | (282,852)              |
| Loans taken out 1                                  | 3                 | 0    | 2,200,000              |
| Total inflows/(outflows) from financing activities | (350,             | 033) | 278,715                |
| Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents | 617               | ,103 | (527,954)              |
| Cash and cash equivalents at fiscal year start     | 7 1,429           | ,188 | 1,957,141              |
| Cash and cash equivalents at fiscal year end       | 2,046             | ,291 | 1,429,187              |



Annual Financial Statements in line with the International Financial Reporting Standards for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2020 *Ill amounts are expressed in Euros, unless stated otherwise)* 



# Notes to the financial statements

# **1** General information

The Company operates in Greece, in the energy sector for the development and management of HWT projects and has been appointed as Officer of the project "Design, Financing, Construction, Maintenance and Infrastructure Operation for the Integrated Waste Management System (IWMS) in the Region of Western Macedonia through a PPP, which includes the construction of New Infrastructures and the operation of New and certain Existing Infrastructures and concerns the total of the Solid Urban Waste of the Region of Western Macedonia, that is, capacity of 120 thousand tons/year.

The Company was incorporated and established in Greece with registered and central offices at 25, Ermou Str., Kifissia.

The Company's financial statements are included in the consolidated financial statements of HELECTOR SA, using the full consolidation method; HELECTOR SA participates in the Company's share capital with 100% and is included in the consolidated statement of the parent company ELLAKTOR SA, a company listed on ATHEX. The financial statements are available at the website <u>www.etae.com</u>.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2021 and are subject to the approval of the General Meeting.

# 2 Summary of significant accounting policies

## 2.1 Basis of preparation of the Financial Statements

The basic accounting principles applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These principles have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), as they have been endorsed by the European Union. The financial statements were prepared in accordance with the historical cost rule and on the going concern principles of the Company's activity.

The preparation of the financial statements under IFRS requires the use of accounting estimates and assumptions by the Management in implementing the accounting policies adopted. The areas requiring large extent of assumptions or where assumptions and estimations have a significant effect on the financial statements are mentioned in note 4.

## 2.1.1 Going concern

The financial statements of 31 December 2020 have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and provide a reasonable presentation of the Company's financial position, profit and loss, and cash flows, in accordance with the principle of going concern.

## 2.1.2 Macroeconomic conditions in Greece

Global economic activity shrank significantly in 2020 due to the severe effects of the coronavirus and the implementation of lockdowns. Consumption has fallen, while services, industrial production and construction have been severely shaken. These developments led to a 6.8% fall in GDP in the Eurozone countries.



In its most recent economic report on Greece, published in May 2021 ("European Economic Forecast Spring 2021"), the European Commission estimates that the fall in GDP in 2020 was-9.7%, but expects that it will recover in 2021 to a rate of +4.1%.

In order to tackle the economic crisis due to the coronavirus, the European Union has reached a historic agreement on a new seven-year budget for the period 2021-2027 of EUR 1.074 billion and a Recovery Fund of  $\notin$ 750 billion, from which Greece is to receive a total of over  $\notin$ 70 billion. Greece will receive  $\notin$ 32 billion from the Recovery Fund of which EUR 19.5 billion relates to grants and EUR 12.5 billion to loans, and will also receive nearly EUR 40 billion from the Multiannual Financial Framework via the NSRF and the Common Agricultural Policy in the period 2021-2027. The Greek government has declared that infrastructure is one of the priority areas into which the above funds are to be channelled.

The Management continually assesses the situation and its possible consequences on the Company, to ensure that all necessary and possible measures and actions are taken in good time to minimize any negative impact, as well as to capitalize on positive developments.

#### 2.2 New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations

**New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations:** Certain new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued that are mandatory for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The Group's evaluation of the effect of these new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations is as follows:

#### Standards and Interpretations effective for the current financial year

#### IFRS 3 (Amendments) 'Definition of a business'

The new definition focuses on the concept of business outputs in the form of goods and services provided to customers, contrary to the previous definition that focused on outputs in the form of dividends, reduced cost or other financial benefits to investors and third parties. It further clarifies that, in order to be considered a business, a complete set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. Finally, it introduces an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

#### IAS 1 and IAS 8 (Amendments) 'Definition of material'

The amendments clarify the definition of material and how it should be applied by including in the definition guidance which until now was featured elsewhere in IFRS. In addition, the clarifications accompanying the definition have been improved. Lastly, the amendments ensure that the definition of "material" is consistently applied to all IFRSs.

#### IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 (Amendments) 'Interest rate benchmark reform'

The amendments modify certain specific hedge accounting requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the uncertainty caused by interest rate benchmark reform. In addition, the amendments require companies to provide additional information to investors about their hedging relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.



#### Standards and Interpretations effective for subsequent periods

# IFRS 17 'Insurance contracts' and Amendments to IFRS 17 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

IFRS 17 has been issued in May 2017 and, along with the Amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, supersedes IFRS 4. IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of the standard is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts. This new standard tackles the comparability challenges arising from the application of IFRS 4, as it introduces consistent accounting for all insurance contracts. Insurance liabilities are measured using current rather than historical rates. The standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

# IFRS 16 (Amendment) 'COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020)

The amendment provides lessees (but not lessors) with relief in the form of an optional exemption from assessing whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees can elect to account for rent concessions in the same way as they would for changes which are not considered lease modifications.

# IFRS 16 (Amendment) 'Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021)

The amendment extends the application period of the practical expedient in relation to rent concessions by one year to cover rental concessions that reduce leases due only on or before 30 June 2022. The amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

# IFRS 4 (Amendment) 'Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021)

The amendment changes the fixed expiry date for the temporary exemption in IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts' from applying IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments', so that entities would be required to apply IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

# IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 (Amendments) 'Interest rate benchmark reform – Phase 2' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021)

The amendments complement those issued in 2019 and focus on the effects on financial statements when a company replaces the old interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the reform. More specifically, the amendments relate to how a company will account for changes in the contractual cash flows of financial instruments, how it will account for the change in its hedging relationships and the information it should disclose.

# IAS 16 (Amendment) 'Property, Plant and Equipment – Proceeds before Intended Use' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)

The amendment prohibits an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of PP&E any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. It also requires entities to separately disclose the amounts of proceeds and costs relating to items produced that are not an output of the entity's ordinary activities. The amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

# IAS 37 (Amendment) 'Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)



The amendment clarifies that 'costs to fulfil a contract' comprise the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment also clarifies that, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, an entity recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets that relate directly to the contract, rather than on assets dedicated to that contract. The amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

# IFRS 3 (Amendment) 'Reference to the Conceptual Framework' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)

The amendment updated the standard to refer to the 2018 Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, in order to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability in a business combination. In addition, an exception was added for some types of liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination. Finally, it also clarified that the acquirer should not recognise contingent assets, as defined in IAS 37, at the acquisition date. The amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

# IAS 1 (Amendment) 'Classification of liabilities as current or non-current' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

The amendment clarifies that liabilities are classified as either current or non-current depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date. The amendment also clarifies what IAS 1 means when it refers to the 'settlement' of a liability. The amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

# IAS 1 (Amendments) 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and FRS Practice Statement 2 'Disclosure of accounting policies' (effective for annual accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

The amendments require entities to disclose their accounting policies when they are material and to provide guidance on the meaning of 'material' when it is applied to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU.

# IAS 8 (Amendments) 'Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU.

# Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022)

The amendments set out below include changes to four IFRSs. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU.

#### IFRS 9 'Financial instruments'

The amendment addresses which fees should be included in the 10% test for derecognition of financial liabilities. Costs or fees could be paid to either third parties or the lender. Under the amendment, costs or fees paid to third parties will not be included in the 10% test.

#### IFRS 16 "Leases"

The amendment removed the illustration of payments from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example 13 of the standard in order to remove any potential confusion about the treatment of lease incentives.

# IAS 41 'Agriculture'



The amendment has removed the requirement for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value under IAS 41.

### 2.4 Leases

#### Company as lessee

On the basis of IFRS 16, the classification of leases as operating leases and financial leases is revoked for the lessee. The right-of-use asset is included in property, plant and equipment in the Statement of Financial Position and the lease liability is included in long-term borrowings (including non-recourse borrowings) and short-term borrowings (including non-recourse borrowings).

At the commencement date of a lease period, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liability by measuring the right-of-use asset at cost.

The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease period, less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee, and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Company in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company undertakes those costs either at the commencement date of the lease period or as a consequence of the use of the leased asset during a specified period.

#### 2.5 Tangible Assets

Fixed assets are reported in the financial statements at acquisition cost minus accumulated depreciation and possible impairment. The acquisition cost includes all the directly attributable expenses for the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The repair and maintenance cost is recorded in the results when such is incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other PPE is calculated using the straight-line method over their useful life as follows:

| - | Mechanical equipment     | 7 - 10 | years |
|---|--------------------------|--------|-------|
| - | Transportation equipment | 8 - 10 | years |
| - | Furniture and fixtures   | 8-     | VOORG |
|   |                          | 10     | years |

The residual values and useful economic life of PPE are subject to reassessment at least at each balance sheet date.

When the book values of tangible assets exceed their recoverable value, the difference (impairment) is posted in the income statement as expense.

Upon the sale of PPE, any difference between the proceeds and the depreciable amount is recorded as profit or loss in the results.

#### **2.5 Financial Instruments**

#### Initial recognition and subsequent measurement of financial assets:

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:



- Financial assets that are subsequently measured at fair value (either in other comprehensive income or in profit or loss) and

- Other financial assets measured at amortized cost

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition is based on the contractual cash flows of the financial assets and the business model within which the financial asset is held.

With the exception of customer receivables, the Company initially assesses a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs, in the case of a financial asset that is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. The transaction costs of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are expensed. Customer receivables are initially measured at transaction value as defined by IFRS 15.

In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income or at fair value through profit or loss. In order to classify and measure a financial asset at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, cash flows that are "solely payments of principal and interest" on the outstanding capital balance must be created. This evaluation is known as the SPPI ("solely payments of principal and interest") criterion and is made at the level of an individual financial instrument.

The new classification and measurement of the Company's debt instruments is as follows:

I. Debt instruments on the amortized cost for debt instruments acquired under a business model the purpose of which is to retain them in order to collect the contractual cash flows, while at the same time meeting the SPPI criterion. Financial assets in this category are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method (EIR) and are subject to impairment testing. Any profit or loss arising when an asset is de-recognised, modified, or impaired is recognised directly in the income statement.

II. Equity instruments at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income, without transfer of profit or loss to the income statement when derecognized. This category includes only equity instruments which the Company intends to hold for the foreseeable future and has irrevocably decided to classify them in this manner upon initial recognition or transition to IFRS 9. Equity instruments at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income are not subject to impairment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in the income statement, unless they represent recovery of the investment cost.

For investments that are traded on an active market, fair value is calculated based on market bid prices. For investments for which there is no active market, fair value is determined by valuation techniques, unless the range of rational estimates of fair value is significantly large and the probable accuracy of the various estimates cannot reasonably be assessed, when valuation of such investments at fair value is prohibited. The purchase or sale of financial assets that require the delivery of assets within a timeframe provided for by a regulation or market assumption is recognized at the settlement date (i.e. the date when the asset is transferred or delivered to the Company).

III. Financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, with profits or losses arising from the valuation being recognized in the income statement. Profits and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the income statement in the line "Other profits/(losses)".

#### Impairment of financial assets

At each financial reporting date the Company assess whether the value of a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired as follows:

The Company recognizes a provision for impairment against expected credit losses for all financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are based on the difference between all



contractual cash flows payable under the contract and all cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the approximate initial effective interest rate.

Expected credit losses are recognized in two stages. If the credit risk of a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the financial entity quantifies the provision for a loss with respect to the financial instrument in question at an amount equivalent to expected credit losses accruing over the next 12 months. If the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the financial entity quantifies the provision for a loss with respect to the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the financial entity quantifies the provision for a loss with respect to the financial instrument in question at an amount equivalent to expected credit losses over its lifetime, regardless of when the default occurred.

For customer receivables and contractual assets, the Company apply the simplified approach for the calculation of expected credit losses. Therefore, at each reporting date, the Company measure the loss provision for a financial instrument at the amount of the expected credit losses over its lifetime without monitoring the changes in credit risk.

## Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

- the rights to the inflow of cash resources have expired;
- the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from that asset but has also undertaken to pay them to third parties in full without undue delay in the form of a transfer agreement; or
- the Company has transferred the right to receive cash flows from that asset while at the same time it either (a) has materially transferred all the risks and rewards accruing therefrom or (b) has not materially transferred all risks and rewards, but has transferred control of the specific asset.

When the Company transfers the rights to receive cash flows from an asset or concludes a transfer agreement, it reviews the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. When the Company neither transfers nor materially retains all the risks and rewards accruing from the transferred asset and retains control of the asset, then the asset is recognized to the extent that the Company continues to participate in the asset. In this case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability is measured on a basis reflecting the rights and obligations retained by the Company.

Continued participation, which takes the form of a guarantee on the transferred asset is recognized at the lower of the carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of the received consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

#### Initial recognition and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially measured at their fair value less transaction costs, in the case of loans and liabilities.

#### **Revocation of recognition of financial liabilities**

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation arising from the liability is cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender but under substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are significantly changed, such exchange or amendment is treated as a derecognition of the initial liability and recognition of a new one. The difference in the respective book values is recognised in the income statement.

#### Offsetting of financial receivables and liabilities



Financial receivables and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the Statement of Financial position only where the Company holds the legal right to do so and intends to offset them on a clear basis between them or to retrieve the financial asset and offset the liability at the same time. The statutory right should not depend on future events and should be capable of being executed in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

## 2.6 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except if the discount outcome is not important, less provision for impairment. Impairment losses for trade receivables arise when objective indications are in place that the Company is not in the position to collect all receivables under contractual terms. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying value and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised as an expense in the income statement.

Trade receivables comprise of commercial papers and notes payable from customers.

Serious problems that the customer encounters, the possibility of bankruptcy or financial reorganization and the inability of scheduled payments considered to be evidence that the receivable value must be impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying value and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised as an expense in the income statement.

## 2.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, sight deposits, and short-term investments of up to 3 months, with high liquidity and low risk.

## 2.8 Share Capital

The share capital includes the Company's ordinary shares. Whenever the company purchases own shares (Own shares), the consideration paid is deducted from equity attributable to the Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or disposed of. The profit or loss from the sale of own shares is recognized directly to equity.

Direct expenses for the issue of shares appear net of any relevant income tax benefit, to the reduction of equity.

## **2.9 Suppliers and other liabilities**

Trade payables are usually obligations to make payment for products or services obtained during performance of typical commercial activity by suppliers. The accounts payable are classified as short-term liabilities if the payment is due within not more than one year. If not, they are classified as long-term liabilities. Trade liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are measured subsequently at net book cost by the use of the effective rate method.

## 2.10 Loans

Borrowings are initially recorded at fair value, net of direct transaction costs incurred. Loans are subsequently stated at net book cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the amount received (net of any relevant expenses) and the value of the payment is recognized in the income statement during the borrowing using the effective interest rate method.

Any borrowing expenses paid upon execution of new credit agreements are recognized as borrowing expenses provided that part or all of the new credit line is withdrawn. In this case, they are recorded as future borrowing



expenses until withdrawal is made. If the new loans are not used, in part or in whole, these expenses are included in prepaid expenses and are recognized in profit or loss during the useful life of the relevant credit line.

Borrowings are classified as short-term liabilities, unless the Company has the right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

# 2.11 Current and deferred taxation

Income tax for the financial year comprises current and deferred taxation. Tax is recognized in the income statement, unless relevant to amounts recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

Income tax on profit is calculated in accordance with the tax legislation established as of the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company operates and is recognized as expense in the period during which profit was generated. The management regularly evaluates the cases where the applicable tax legislation requires interpretation. Where necessary, estimates are made for the amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is determined using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, as shown in the financial statements. The deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting or the taxable gains or losses. Deferred tax is determined using the tax rates and laws in force as of the date of the balance sheet, and expected to be in force when the deferred tax receivables will come due or deferred tax liabilities will be repaid.

Deferred tax receivables are recognised to the extent that there could be future taxable gains to use the temporary difference that gives rise to the deferred tax receivables.

Deferred tax receivables and liabilities are offset only if the offsetting of tax receivables and liabilities is permitted by law, and provided that deferred tax receivables and liabilities are determined by the same tax authority for the tax paying entity or other different entities, and the intention has been expressed to proceed to settlement by way of offset.

## 2.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when an actual legal or assumed commitment exists as a result of past events, when settlement of such commitment will likely require an outflow of resources, and when the required amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are recognized on a discounted basis when the effect of the time value of money is significant, using a pretax rate which reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability. When provisions are discounted, the increase in provisions due to the lapse of time is recognised as a financial expense. Provisions are reviewed on each date of financial statements and if an outflow of funds to settle the obligation is unlikely, they are reversed in the income statement.

## **2.13 Employee benefits**

#### (a) Post-employment benefits

The employee benefits after their retirement include defined contribution programs and defined benefit programs. Payments are defined by Greek law and the funds' regulations.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines a specific amount to a pension to be received by an employee when he retires, which usually depends on one or more factors such as age, years of service and level of salary.



A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan under which the Company makes fixed payments to a separate legal entity. The Company has no legal obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not have sufficient assets to pay to all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to public social security funds on a mandatory basis. The Company has no obligation other than paying its contributions. The contributions are recognized as staff costs when the debt arises. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset if there is a cash refund possibility or offsetting against future debts.

The liability that is reported in the balance sheet with respect to defined benefit schemes is the present value of the liability for the defined benefit on the balance sheet date, less the fair value of the scheme's assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting future cash flows at a discount rate equal to the rate of long-term investment grade corporate bonds that have a maturity approximately equal to the pension plan.

Actuarial gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in the income statement.

Net interest cost is assessed as the net amount between the obligation for the defined benefit scheme and the fair value of the assets of the scheme on the prepayment interest rate.

#### *(b) Employment termination benefits*

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company recognizes these benefits at the earliest of the following dates: (a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of such benefits, and b) when the Company recognizes restructuring costs falling within the scope of IAS 37 and includes the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, retirement benefits are calculated based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. When such termination benefits are deemed payable in periods that exceed 12 months from the Balance Sheet date, then they must be discounted at their current value.

In case of employment termination where the number of employees to use such benefits cannot be determined, the benefits are disclosed as contingent liability, but are not accounted for.

#### **2.14 Distribution of dividends**

The distribution of dividends to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability at the date on which the distribution is approved by the General Meeting of the shareholders.

#### 2.15 Recognition of income

#### Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the customer acquires control over the goods or services for an amount reflecting the consideration that the Group expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The new standard establishes a five-stage model for measuring revenue from contracts with customers:

- 1. Identification of contract with the customer.
- 2. Identification of the performance obligations.
- 3. Determination of the transaction price.



- 4. Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations of the contract.
- 5. Recognition of revenues when or while a financial entity fulfils the performance obligation.

The underlying principle is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount that the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. It also contains principles that an entity will apply to determine the measurement of revenue and timing of when it is recognised. In accordance with IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or the services, determining the time of the transfer of control - either at a specific point in time or over time.

Revenue is defined as the amount that a financial entity expects to be entitled to as consideration for the goods or the services it transferred to any customer, with the exception of the amounts collected on behalf of third parties (value added tax, other sales taxes). Variable amounts are included in the price and are calculated either with the "expected value" method or the "most probable amount" method.

Revenue from service provision is recognised during the accounting period during which the services are provided and measured in accordance with the nature of the services provided, using either the "output methods" or the "input methods".

A customer receivable is recognised when the financial entity has an unconditional right to collect the price for obligations of the contract fulfilled towards the customer.

Trade receivables from contracts with customers appear as 'Contractual assets' under the item 'Trade and other receivables' and trade payables appear as 'Contractual liabilities' under 'Trade and other payables'.

#### Revenue from goods sold

Revenue from goods sold is recognised at the time the buyer acquires control. Consequently, revenue from sale of goods will continue to be recognized on delivery to the buyer provided there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the acceptance of the goods by the buyer and could be calculated in the consideration specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue from the sale of goods comes from the sale of recyclable materials.

## 2.18 Rounding of accounts

The amounts contained in these financial statements have been rounded in Euros. Possible differences that may occur are due to rounding.

## **3** Financial risk management

#### **3.1 Financial risk factors**

The Company is exposed to various financial risks, such as market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. Financial risks are associated with the following financial instruments: accounts receivable, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and other liabilities. The accounting principles referred to the above financial instruments are presented in Note 2.6.

Risk management is performed by the financial division and determined within the framework of rules approved by the Board of Directors. The Finance Division determines and estimates the financial risks in collaboration with the services managing those risks. The Board of Directors provides guidelines and instructions on general risk management and special instructions on managing specific risks.



- - -

- -

#### (a) Credit Risk

The Company has an increased concentration of credit risk since all its revenues come from the provision of services to EPADYM.

Cash and cash equivalents also involve potential credit risk. In such cases, the risk may arise from counterparty failure to fulfill their obligations towards the Company. In order to minimize this credit risk, the Company sets limits to the degree of exposure for each financial institution, within the scope of the policies of the Board f Directors.

#### (b) Interest rate risk

All Company loans are usually taken at a floating interest rate and are expressed in euro. Therefore, the interest rate risk is connected to fluctuations of euro rates. With regard to long-term loans, the Company's Management monitors rate fluctuations systematically and on an ongoing basis and evaluates the need to assume hedging positions, if such risks are considered to be significant.

The company constantly monitors interest rate trends, as well as the duration and nature of its financing needs. Decisions on the term of loans as well as the relation between floating and fixed interest rates are considered by the management on a case by case basis.

#### (c) Liquidity risk

To manage liquidity risk, the Company budgets and monitors its cash flows and acts accordingly so as to have adequate cash available and bank credit lines in place.

The Company has sufficient cash as well as significant credit lines in place to cover cash needs that may arise.

The Company's liquidity is monitored by the Management at regular intervals. The following table presents a breakdown of the Company's financial liabilities maturing on 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively:

#### **COMPANY FIGURES**

|                                 |                                   | 31-Dec-20 |                                       |           |  |  |
|---------------------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------|---------------------------------------|-----------|--|--|
|                                 | MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES |           |                                       |           |  |  |
|                                 |                                   |           | Between 1 and<br>5 years Over 5 years |           |  |  |
| Financial lease liabilities     | 378,148                           | 1,057,058 | 520,000                               | 1,955,206 |  |  |
| Loans                           | 1,115,745                         | -         | -                                     | 1,115,745 |  |  |
| Suppliers and other liabilities | 877,102                           | -         | -                                     | 877,102   |  |  |

|                             |                  | 31-Dec-19                         |              |           |  |
|-----------------------------|------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------|-----------|--|
|                             | MAT              | MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES |              |           |  |
|                             | Within 1<br>year | Between 1 and<br>5 years          | Over 5 years | Total     |  |
| Financial lease liabilities | 382,475          | 1,305,206                         | 650,000      | 2,337681  |  |
| Loans                       | 1,115,404        | -                                 | -            | 1,115,404 |  |
| Trade and other liabilities | 1,645,556        | -                                 | -            | 1,645,556 |  |



The foregoing amounts are shown in contractual, undiscounted cash flows.

The breakdown of line "Trade and other liabilities" is exclusive of the sums related to "Social security and other taxes/duties".

#### (d) Cash flow risk and risk arising from fair value change due to a change in interest rates

The Company's assets include significant interest-bearing assets, including sight deposits. The Company's exposure to risk from interest rate fluctuations is small, as it has no bank loans at floating rates.

#### **3.2 Cash management**

Capital management aims to ensure the Company's going concern, and achieve its development plans, combined with its creditworthiness.

To evaluate the Company's creditworthiness, the Company's net debt should be evaluated (i.e. total long and shortterm loans with banks less cash and cash equivalents), however excluding respective cash and cash equivalents connected to such financing.

The leverage ratio calculation as of 31.12.2020 and 31.12.2019 is not applicable.

## 4 Significant accounting estimates of the management

The annual financial statements and the accompanying notes and reports might contain certain assumptions and calculations pertaining to future events in relation to the Company's operations, growth and financial performance. Although such assumptions and calculations are based on the best knowledge of the Company's Management with regard to current conditions and actions, the actual results may be different from such calculations and assumptions taken into account in the preparation of the Company's annual financial statements. On 31.12.2020 and 31.12.2019 there are no funds, the calculation of which includes accounting estimates from the Company's management.

## 5. Property, plant and equipment

| Vehicles  | Mechanical<br>equipment   | Furniture<br>& other<br>equipment  | Total  |
|-----------|---|--|--|
|           |   |  |  |
| 2,661,291 | 124,233   | 47,687   | 2,833,211  |
| 37,963    | -   | -  | 37,963   |
| -         | 10,690  | 1,922  | 12,612   |
| 6,462     | -   | -  | 6,462  |
| (9,871)   | -   | -  | (9,871)  |
| 2,695,845 | 134,923   | 49,609   | 2,880,377  |
| 2,695,845 | 134,923   | 49,609   | 2,880,377  |
| -         | 4,144   | 14,675   | 18,819   |
| 2,695,845 | 139,067   | 64,284   | 2,899,196  |
|           | 2,661,291<br>37,963<br>6,462<br>(9,871)<br>2,695,845<br>2,695,845 | Vehicles equipment   2,661,291 124,233   37,963 -   - 10,690   6,462 -   (9,871) -   2,695,845 134,923   2,695,845 134,923   - 4,144 | Vehicles Intermediate & other equipment   2,661,291 124,233 47,687   37,963 - -   - 10,690 1,922   6,462 - -   (9,871) - -   2,695,845 134,923 49,609   - 4,144 14,675 |



## Accumulated depreciation

| 1-Jan-19                              | (426,616)   | (8,914)  | (12,932) | (448,462)   |
|---------------------------------------|-------------|----------|----------|-------------|
| Amortization for the period           | (323,997)   | (13,417) | (7,400)  | (344,814)   |
| Write-offs                            | 2,468       | -        | -        | 2,468       |
| 31-Dec-19                             | (748,145)   | (22,331) | (20,332) | (790,808)   |
| 1-Jan-20                              | (748,145)   | (22,331) | (20,332) | (790,808)   |
| Depreciation for the period           | (321,529)   | (13,561) | (7,253)  | (342,344)   |
| 31-Dec-20                             | (1,069,674) | (35,892) | (27,585) | (1,133,152) |
| Net book value as of 31 December 2019 | 1,947,700   | 112,592  | 29,277   | 2,089,569   |
| Net book value as of 31 December 2020 | 1,626,171   | 103,175  | 36,699   | 1,766,043   |

Leasing of vehicles totaling a value of EUR 1.56 million started in 2018. The total duration of the lease is 144 months (12 years) and the lease term is from 01/01/2018 to 10/12/2029.

# 6. Trade and other receivables

|   | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|---|-----------|-----------|
| Trade receivables – Related parties               | 1,310,340 | 2,103,329 |
| Trade receivables                                 | 1,310,340 | 2,103,329 |
| Income tax prepayment                             | 0         | 12,854    |
| Prepayments to suppliers/creditors                | 63,792    | 109,423   |
| Greek State: (withheld and pre-<br>payable taxes) | 0         | 1,190     |
| Prepaid expenses                                  | 100,439   | 85,472    |
| Provisional accounts (Project management)         | 809       | 1,714     |
| Total   | 1,475,381 | 2,313,982 |
| Non-current assets                                | 0         | 0         |
| Current assets                                    | 1,475,381 | 2,313,982 |
| Total   | 1,475,381 | 2,313,982 |

The maturity analysis for the remaining customers as at 31.12.2020 is less than 3 months.

The Company's claims come entirely from the associated company EPADYM, which is the concessioner of the project "Design, financing, construction, maintenance and operation of infrastructure for the Integrated Waste Management System (IWMS) in the Region of Western Macedonia through a PPP", which is operated by EDADYM SINGLE MEMBER SOCIETE ANONYME.



# 7. Cash and cash equivalents

|                | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|----------------|-----------|-----------|
| Cash in hand   | 4,017     | 4,083     |
| Sight deposits | 2,042,274 | 1,425,106 |
| Total          | 2,046,291 | 1,429,188 |

There are no cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies.

The following table shows the rates of deposits per credit rating class by Standard & Poor's (S&P) as at 31.12.20:

|                                     | 31-Dec-20                                  | 31-Dec-19                                  |
|-------------------------------------|--|--|
| Financial institution credit rating | Cash<br>reserves<br>and cash<br>equivalent | Cash<br>reserves<br>and cash<br>equivalent |
|                                     | S  | S  |
| В                                   | 100%                                       | -  |
| В-                                  | -  | 100%                                       |
| Total                               | 100%                                       | 100%                                       |

The emerging cooperation with low rated credit institutions seen is due to the downgrade of Greek banks' credit ratings, as a result of the debt crisis facing Greece. It should be pointed out that the Greek banks provide most of the total credit facilities (letters of guarantee, loans, etc.) granted to the Company.

## 8. Share capital

|           | Number of Shares | Share capital | Total     |
|-----------|------------------|---------------|-----------|
| 1-Jan-19  | 127,400          | 1,274,000     | 1,274,000 |
| 31-Dec-19 | 127,400          | 1,274,000     | 1,274,000 |
| 1-Jan-20  | 127,400          | 1,274,000     | 1,274,000 |
| 31-Dec-20 | 127,400          | 1,274,000     | 1,274,000 |

The Company's share capital as of 31.12.2020 amounts to EUR 1,274,000, divided into 127,400 voting shares with the face value of  $\in$  10 each.

# 9. Other reserves

|                          | Actuarial profit/(loss) reserves | Total     |
|--------------------------|----------------------------------|-----------|
| 1-Jan-19                 | (8,008)                          | (8,008)   |
| Actuarial gains/(losses) | (12,559)                         | (12,559)  |
| 31-Dec-19                | (20.567)                         | (20.567)  |
| 1-Jan-20                 | (20.567)                         | (20.567)  |
| Actuarial gains/(losses) | (5,546)                          | (5,546)   |
| 31-Dec-20                | (26,114)                         | (26,1147) |



#### Actuarial profit/(loss) reserves

These reserves include the actuarial profit/(loss) (and the relevant deferred taxation) arising from recalculations of (a) the present value of defined benefit commitments, and (b) the fair value of assets which, according to the revised standard IAS 19, are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

# 10. Suppliers and other liabilities

|                                   | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|-----------------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Suppliers                         | 366,947   | 385,781   |
| Social security and other taxes   | 299,351   | 274,791   |
| Wages and salaries payable        | 0         | 122,707   |
| Accrued expenses                  | 53,404    | 95,422    |
| Third party fees                  | 17,999    | 79,347    |
| Subcontractors                    | 1,015     | 6,387     |
| Income of subsequent fiscal years | 43,100    | 0         |
| Liabilities to related parties    | 394,638   | 955,912   |
| Total                             | 1,176,453 | 1,920.347 |
| Short-term                        | 1,176,453 | 1.920.347 |
| Total                             | 1,176,453 | 1,920.347 |

The Company's liabilities from trade activities are free of interest.

There are no liabilities in foreign currency.

# 11. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax receivables and liabilities are offset when there is a legally vested right to offset current tax receivables against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes involve the same tax authority. Offset amounts are as follows:

|                             | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|-----------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Deferred tax receivables:   |           |           |
| Recoverable after 12 months | 19,550    | 18,810    |
|                             | 19,550    | 18,810    |

Total change in deferred income tax is presented below.

|   | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|---|-----------|-----------|
| Opening balance                         | 18,810    | 16,930    |
| Debit/ (credit) through profit and loss | (1,011)   | (1,946)   |
| Equity debit/(credit)                   | 1,752     | 3,826     |
| Closing balance                         | 19,550    | 18,810    |



Changes in deferred tax receivables and liabilities during the year, without taking into account offsetting of balances with the same tax authority, are the following:

| Deferred tax receivables:                                | Accelerated<br>tax<br>depreciation | Actuarial<br>profit/(loss)<br>reserves | Other  | Total            |
|--|------------------------------------|--|--------|------------------|
| 1 January 2019   | 3,031                              | 2,669                                  | 11,230 | 16,930           |
| Income statement debit/(credit)<br>Equity debit/(credit) | (2,950)                            | 3,826                                  | 1,004  | (1,946)<br>3,826 |
| 31 December 2019   | 81                                 | 6,495                                  | 12,234 | 18,810           |
|  |                                    |  |        |                  |
| 1 January 2020   | 81                                 | 6,495                                  | 12,234 | 18,810           |
| Income statement debit/(credit)                          | (2,828)                            | -                                      | 1,817  | (1,011)          |
| Equity debit/(credit)                                    |                                    | 1,752                                  |        | 1,752            |
| <b>31 December 2020</b>                                  | (2,747)                            | 8,246                                  | 14,051 | 19,550           |

# 12. Provisions for staff compensation

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are the following:

|  | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|--|-----------|-----------|
| Current value of non-financed liabilities    | 92,904    | 78,036    |
| Liability in Statement of Financial Position | 92,904    | 78,036    |

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement are the following:

|                              | 01-Jan to 31-<br>Dec-20 | 01-Jan to 31-<br>Dec-19 |
|------------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|
| Income statement charge for: |                         |                         |
| Retirement benefits          | 14,869                  | 19,972                  |
| Total                        | 14,869                  | 19,972                  |

The amounts posted in the Income Statement are as follows:



|                                   | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|-----------------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Current service cost              | 14,989    | 12,141    |
| Financial cost                    | 702       | 945       |
| Cost of past service              | (4,372)   | 0         |
| (Profit) /Cut-down losses         | 3,549     | 6,886     |
| Total included in personnel costs | 14,869    | 19,792    |

Change to liabilities as presented in the Balance Sheet is as follows:

|  | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|--|-----------|-----------|
| Opening balance  | 78,036    | 55,596    |
| Indemnities paid   | -         | 11,853    |
| Actuarial (profits)/losses (remeasurements) recognized<br>in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income | 7,298     | 16,385    |
| Total expense charged in the income statement  | 7,571     | 17,908    |
| Closing balance  | 92,904    | 78,036    |

The main actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

|                      | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|----------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Discount rate        | 0.40%     | 0.90%     |
| Future salary raises | 1.70%     | 1.70%     |
| Rise of inflation    | 1.70%     | 1.70%     |

The average weighted duration of retirement benefits is 17.32 years.

Actuarial (profit)/loss recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income Statement are:

|  | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|--|-----------|-----------|
| (Profit)/loss from the change in financial assumptions | 7,298     | 16,385    |

Sensitivity analysis of changes in the main assumptions for pension benefits are:

|                     | Change in the assumption according to | Increase in the assumption | Decrease in the assumption |
|---------------------|---------------------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|
| Discount rate       | 0.50%                                 | -9.78                      | +9.78%                     |
| Payroll change rate | 0.50%                                 | +9.64%                     | -9.64%                     |

# **13 Borrowings**

|                             | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|-----------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Long-term borrowing         |           |           |
| Financial lease liabilities | 1,358,264 | 1,657,033 |
|                             | 1,358,264 | 1,657,033 |



| Short-term borrowing                                   |           |           |
|--|-----------|-----------|
| Bank loans   | 1,115,745 | 1,115,404 |
| Financial lease liabilities                            | 298,768   | 287,667   |
|  | 1,414,513 | 1,403,071 |
| Total borrowing  | 2,772,777 | 30,60,103 |
| The maturities of long-term borrowings are as follows: |           |           |
|  | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
| Between 1 and 2 years                                  | 305,129   | 298,768   |
| 2 to 5 years   | 582,720   | 784,199   |
| More than 5 years                                      | 470,415   | 574,066   |
|  | 1,358,264 | 1,657,033 |

The present value of finance lease liabilities is analysed below:

|                   | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|-------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Up to 1 year      | 298,768   | 287,667   |
| From 1 to 5 years | 887,849   | 1,082.967 |
| More than 5 years | 470,415   | 574,066   |
|                   | 1,657,033 | 1,944,700 |

Financial lease liabilities are analyzed as follows:

|   | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|---|-----------|-----------|
| Up to 1 year                                      | 378,148   | 382,475   |
| From 1 to 5 years                                 | 1,057,058 | 1,305,206 |
| More than 5 years                                 | 520,000   | 650,000   |
| Total   | 1,955,206 | 2,337681  |
| Less: Future financial debits of financial leases | (298,174) | (392,981) |
| Present value of financial lease commitments      | 1,657,033 | 1,944,700 |

# 14. Expenses per category

|  | 01-Jan to-20 to Dec-31-20 |                                | 01-Jan-19 to 31-Dec-19 |                       |                                |           |
|--|---------------------------|--------------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------|--------------------------------|-----------|
|  | Cost of<br>Goods Sold     | Administ<br>rative<br>expenses | Total                  | Cost of<br>Goods Sold | Administ<br>rative<br>expenses | Total     |
| Employee benefits                      | 2,840,942                 | 0                              | 2,840,942              | 2,859,507             | 0                              | 2,859,507 |
| Inventories used                       | 850,699                   | 0                              | 850,699                | 850,446               | 0                              | 850,446   |
| Depreciation of tangible assets        | 342,344                   | 0                              | 342,344                | 344,814               | 0                              | 344,814   |
| Amortisation of intangible assets      | 208                       | 0                              | 208                    | 299                   | 0                              | 299       |
| Repair and maintenance expenses of PPE | 65,983                    | 0                              | 65,983                 | 37,939                | 0                              | 37,939    |



| Total  | 6,327,308 | 283,438 | 6,610,745 | 6,204,280 | 485,713 | 6,689,993 |
|--|-----------|---------|-----------|-----------|---------|-----------|
| Commissions paid for letters of guarantee (direct cost of project)                 | 200,379   | 0       | 200,379   | 213,159   | 0       | 213,159   |
| Miscellaneous expenses   | 0         | 76,010  | 76,010    | 0         | 61,303  | 61,303    |
| Perishable supplies and property service charges                                   | 146,895   | 38,698  | 185,593   | 0         | 167,457 | 167,457   |
| Office supplies  | 0         | 10,409  | 10,409    | 0         | 28,926  | 28,926    |
| Viewing, advertising, exhibiting and demonstration costs                           | 0         | 5,731   | 5,731     | 0         | 28,824  | 28,824    |
| Transportation and travelling expenses   | 78,691    | 40,860  | 119,551   | 56,470    | 71,845  | 128,315   |
| Taxes-Fees (Municipal taxes, etc.)   | 0         | 61,226  | 61,226    | 0         | 78,666  | 78,666    |
| Other third party fees & expenses  | 338,206   | 6,512   | 344,718   | 349,371   | 2,048   | 351,419   |
| Subcontractor fees (including insurance contributions for subcontractor personnel) | 13,520    | 0       | 13,520    | 20,824    | 0       | 20,824    |
| Technician (engineers, designers, etc.) fees and expenses                          | 398,617   | 0       | 398,617   | 485,898   | 0       | 485,898   |
| Other third party benefits   | 0         | 38,467  | 38,467    | 0         | 38,609  | 38,609    |
| Premiums   | 26,265    | 0       | 26,265    | 29,394    | 0       | 29,394    |
| mobile telephony providers, natural gas<br>company, etc.)                          | 945,944   | 5,525   | 951,468   | 866,981   | 8,035   | 875,016   |
| Operating lease rents<br>Third Party Benefits (PPC, OTE, EYDAP,                    | 78,615    | 0       | 78,615    | 89,178    | 0       | 89,178    |

# 15. Finance income/ (expenses) - net

| Financial expenses                 | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|------------------------------------|-----------|-----------|
| Interest expenses                  |           |           |
| Bank loans                         | (19,092)  | 0         |
| Financial Leases                   | (96,629)  | (105,727  |
| Sundry banking costs               | (45,388)  | (54,751)  |
| Total financial expenses           | (161,109) | (160,478) |
| Financial income                   |           |           |
| Interest income                    | 3,459     | 3,195     |
| Total financial income             | 3,459     | 3,195     |
| Financial income/ (expenses) - net | (157,650) | (157,283) |

# 16. Other profit/(loss)

|                              | 1-Jan to 31-Dec-<br>20 | 1-Jan to 31-<br>Dec-19 |  |
|------------------------------|------------------------|------------------------|--|
| Other profit                 | 1,747                  | 0                      |  |
| Other damages                | (15,066)               | (35,851)               |  |
| Total of other profit/(loss) | (13,318)               | (35,851)               |  |



# 17. Income tax

|                    | 1-Jan to 31-Dec-<br>20 | 1-Jan to 31-<br>Dec-19 |
|--------------------|------------------------|------------------------|
| Tax for the period | 145,675                | (19,922)               |
| Deferred tax       | 1,011                  | 1,946                  |
| Total              | 146,686                | (17,976)               |

The current tax rate in Greece as at 31 December 2020 is 24%.

With regard to the financial years 2011 through 2015, Greek Sociétés Anonyme whose financial statements must be audited by statutory auditors, were required to be audited by the same Statutory Auditor or audit firm that reviewed their annual financial statements, and obtain a "Tax Compliance Report", as laid down in Article 82(5) of Law 2238/1994 and Article 65A of Law 4174/2013. With regard to fiscal years from 2016 onwards, the tax audit and the issue of a "Tax Compliance Report" are optional.

Pursuant to the relevant tax provisions of: a) Article 1(84) of Law 2238/1994 (unaudited income taxation cases), b) Article 1(57) of Law 2859/2000 (non-audited VAT cases), and c) Article 9(5) of Law 2523/1997 (imposition of fines for income tax cases), the right of the State to impose taxes for the financial years up to 2013 is time-barred until 31.12.2019, subject to special or extraordinary provisions which may introduce longer limitation periods under conditions laid down in such provisions. Moreover, according to settled case-law of the Council of State and the Administrative Courts, in the absence of a limitation provision contained in the Codified Laws on Stamps Duty, the State's claim for stamp duty is subject to the twenty-year limitation period laid down in Article 249 of the Civil Code.

The Company's fiscal years have not been audited by the tax authorities since incorporation (December 2014). For financial year of 2020, the Company is subject to the tax audit by certified auditors-accountants, as provided for by Article 65(a) of Law 4174/2013. Such audit is already being performed, and the relevant tax certificate is anticipated to be delivered following the publication of the financial statements for 2020. The Company's management and the signatories to the Financial Statements are not expecting significant tax liabilities, upon completion of the tax audit, other than those recorded and presented in the financial statements.

The tax on the Company's earnings before taxes is different from the notional amount which would have resulted had we used the average weighted tax factor of the company's country, as follows:

|   | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|---|-----------|-----------|
| Accounting profit / (losses) before tax   | 480,946   | 134,974   |
| Tax factor:   | 24%       | 24%       |
| Tax calculated on profits under current tax rates applied in the respective countries | 115,427   | (32,394)  |
| Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  | 31,259    | 33,537    |
| Correction of previous fiscal year tax  | 0         | (19,922)  |
| Tax losses for the year   | 0         | 232       |
| Effect of change to tax rate  | 0         | 570       |
| Income statement debit taxation   | 146,686   | (17,976)  |



# 18. Operating cash flows

| =   |    | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
|---|----|-----------|-----------|
| <b>Operating activities</b>                                       | -  |           |           |
| Net profit/ (loss) for the period                                 |    | 334,259   | (116,998) |
| Income tax  | 17 | 146,686   | (17,976)  |
| Depreciation and amortisation                                     |    | 342,552   | 345,113   |
| Financial income  |    | (3,459)   | (3,195)   |
| Financial expenses  |    | 161,109   | 160,479   |
| Decrease/ (increase) of receivables                               |    | 836,281   | 1,138,430 |
| (Decrease)/ Increase of liabilities                               |    | (743,894) | 109,278   |
| Increase / (decrease) in personnel compensation due to retirement |    | 7,571     | 6,055     |
| Cash flows from operating activities                              | -  | 1,081,105 | (655,674) |

# 19. Contingent liabilities

The Company has no disputes in litigation or in arbitration, nor are there any pending decisions by judicial or arbitration bodies that may have a significant impact on its financial standing or operation. For the remaining part, there are no other contingent liabilities relating to other issues arising out of its ordinary course of business.

# 20. Company transactions with affiliates

The transactions carried out with related parties (according to IAS 24) are the following:

|                                      | 01/01/20 to<br>31/12/2020 | 01/01/19 to<br>31/12/2019 |
|--------------------------------------|---------------------------|---------------------------|
| Sales of goods and services          |                           |                           |
| Sales to other related parties       | 7,261,936                 | 6,746,217                 |
| Totals                               | 7,261,936                 | 6,746,217                 |
| Purchases of goods and services      |                           |                           |
| Purchases from Parent Company        | 209,995                   | 217,600                   |
| Purchases from other related parties | 1,305                     | 57,923                    |



| Totals  | 211,300   | 275,523   |
|---|-----------|-----------|
|   | 31-Dec-20 | 31-Dec-19 |
| Closing balance (Receivables)                   |           |           |
| Receivables from affiliates                     | 1,310,340 | 2,103,329 |
| Totals  |           |           |
| Closing balance (Liabilities to Parent Company) |           |           |
| Obligations to parent                           | 393,778   | 926,338   |
| Balances from other related parties             | 860       | 31,766    |
|   | 394,638   | 958,104   |
| Senior management compensation                  | 17,490    | 22,357    |

## 21. Other notes

The total fees payable to the Company's legal auditors for the mandatory audit of the annual financial statements for FY 2020 stand at EUR 10 thousand for the statutory audit of the financial statements and EUR 5.5 thousand for the Tax Compliance Report.

- As of 31.12.2020 the Company employed 149 personnel, while as of 31.12.2019 it employed 119 personnel.

# 22. Subsequent events

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 120 of Law 4799/2021 (Government Gazette Series I, 78/18.05.2021) the tax rate of profits from business activity acquired by legal persons and legal entities, is reduced by two percentage points (from a former 24% to 22%), for the revenues of the tax year 2021 and future years. Were the change in the tax rate from 24% to 22% applied to the current financial year this would not significantly affect the financial report of the Company.

Athens, 23 June 2021

The Vice President & executive director

The CEO

The CFO

The Head of the Accounts Department



Annual Financial Statements in line with the International Financial Reporting Standards for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2020 Ill amounts are expressed in Euros, unless stated otherwise)

Nikos A. Perdikaris

Leonidas G. Bobolas

Georgios I. Pliatsikas

Dimitra M. Meleti